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Date:  November 20, 2012 

To:  Redevelopment Authority and Board of Supervisors 
  Meeting of December 6, 2012 

From:  Lee Plemel, Planning Director 

Subject: Allocation of $77,876 of Redevelopment funds for infrastructure projects 
 
 
The FY 2012/13 Redevelopment budget includes $72,376 for “undesignated infrastructure 
projects.” These are funds remaining in the budget after accounting for general Redevelopment 
operating expenses, payoff of prior incentive commitments, and special event funding. These 
funds have not been allocated to any specific projects.  
 
The Board of Supervisors directed staff to seek recommendations from the Redevelopment 
Authority Citizens Committee regarding how to use these available funds. On October 1, 2012, 
RACC discussed and considered two requests for the use of the funds, further detailed below.  
 
The Chamber of Commerce is requesting that the funds be used to assist in the construction of 
a new digital reader board sign to replace the existing Community Center sign on East William 
Street. The sign would be used to promote the Community Center as well as various civic 
events and programs in the Downtown Redevelopment Area and around Carson City, similar to 
the downtown Carson Street banner that is used today. More information on the proposed sign, 
including estimates on the cost of construction and maintenance, has been provided by the 
Chamber of Commerce and is attached. Chamber of Commerce Director and RACC member 
Ronni Hannaman will provide more information and an explanation at the meeting regarding 
activities to obtain additional funding and support for this sign. The proposed sign would 
promote downtown events in conformance with the goals and strategies contained in the 
existing Downtown Redevelopment Area Plan.  
 
Another request by Mr. William Landry, property owner of vacant commercial property at 3201 
South Carson Street, was discussed and considered to use Redevelopment funds to extend a 
City water main to serve the property and adjacent properties. A letter of request from Mr. 
Landry is attached to this memo, and staff has also included a map showing the subject 
property and the location of existing City water mains in the vicinity. The map also notes 
surrounding properties that are connected to City water or on private wells. It is estimated by Mr. 
Landry that the cost to extend the public water main, as would be required by the Public Works 
Department for development of the parcel, is approximately $33,000. Mr. Landry notes that the 
presence of water service to the property will facilitate future development as well as a small 
project that he is currently planning for the site, and would also improve fire safety in the vicinity 
with addition of a fire hydrant. The RACC members noted to potential merit of the project but 
generally believed that it would be more appropriate to evaluate it in conjunction with plans for a 
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larger project on the site. The use of Redevelopment funds to extend public infrastructure is 
addressed in the proposed amendments to the Redevelopment Area 2 Plan.  
 
There have been no discretionary funds available for infrastructure or development incentives in 
the last two budget cycles prior to this year. The last infrastructure project within the 
Redevelopment District was the placement of pedestrian way-finding signs in the downtown 
area, which cost approximately $25,000.  
 
The Redevelopment Authority and Board of Supervisors indefinitely suspended the small 
business incentive program in 2010. This incentive program provided property owners up to 
20% of the cost of improvements to move new businesses into the property. The program was 
suspended to focus Redevelopment funds towards more public infrastructure-oriented 
improvements that have a broader benefit to the Redevelopment District.  
 
If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact Lee Plemel at 283-7075 or 
lplemel@carson.org 
 
 
Attachments:  
 A. Draft RACC Minutes from October 1, 2012 
 B.  Conceptual Community Center Sign information  
 C.  South Carson Street water line extension request  
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Why an LED sign in front of the Carson City Community Center? 
 
Informational outdoor signage has come a long way since the 1974 placement of the 
static community center sign still standing after all these years in front of the community 
center.   The current sign is old-fashioned, labor-intensive and does not have the 
capability of easily changing a message or presenting multiple impressions. 
 
Since the 1970’s, vehicle traffic on the corner of Roop and William Street has increased 
multi-fold.  A traffic count prepared by Patrick Pittenger, Carson City’s Transportation 
Manager show that as of this spring 2012, this corner was heavily trafficked: 
 
- William Street 300 ft. W. of Roop Street - 14,545 vehicles/day 
- Roop Street 100 ft. S. of Robinson Street - 7,315 vehicles/day 
- Roop Street 550 ft. S. of Winnie Lane - 11,761 vehicles/day 
 
Pittenger gave us two numbers for Roop with the count stations are on each side of the 
Community Center making sure we had all of our statistical bases covered. 
 
A state-of-the-art LED outdoor sign to replace the current static sign will fit nicely into 
the current updating of the Community Center and will allow multiple messages and the 
opportunity to change messages at a whim.  It will allow us to welcome sports teams and 
any large conventions.  We can better publicize our many events.  It will allow those 
shows being held at the Community Center to be well-highlighted.  Further, it will allow 
our emergency management teams to announce street closings, fire warnings and other 
emergency needs that may arise. WNC and the school district will be able to inform 
viewers of the start of the new school season and special events held on their campuses.   
 
Not everyone reads our local newspaper and the Reno stations provide limited coverage 
on Carson City events.  As a result, many probably miss out on what is going on in our 
City.  The LED sign could attract people to the downtown core that may have by-passed 
it because they did not know of an event.  Perhaps more tickets could have been sold to 
the recent showing of WNC’s “Hello Dolly.”   Participation is our public process could 
possibly increase if the meetings are better publicized.  Tournaments could be publicized 
as well as new classes for the parks and recreation department.  We could honor our 
troops for special events such as the recent Battle Born Days.  We could wish our citizens 
Happy Thanksgiving or whatever other holiday that would be pertinent. The Nutcracker 
Ballet featuring our city officials could be promoted. WNC could announce their new 
semester, graduation and baseball games.  CCSD could announce their homecoming and 
other games as well as school closures, school starts and more. The possibilities are as 
endless as the number of messages that can be displayed.    
 
At present, the only source of communication for most non-profits is the static banner 
placed along Carson Street for one week.  The competition for that one week is high and 
many events are not able to be promoted.  Also, the cost of a banner is over $800, a high 
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cost for a one-week shelf-life.  With an LED sign, the changing message would have 
many more impressions and could be publicized for a longer period.  
 
There is no plan to allow for commercial advertising and a committee will be assembled 
to provide guidelines as to who and what messages will be allowed on the sign. A small 
fee per participant is being considered to cover maintenance and operational costs.  
 
The LED message center can be managed by the Chamber of Commerce and the 
Community Center through the use of broadband remote control at various locations.  It 
is anticipated the Sheriff’s Office and the Fire Department will be able to have a control 
for emergency purposes. 
 
How will the sign be funded?   Much of the sign will be funded through the 
Redevelopment Fund, a perfect use of these monies.  The Community Center is located in 
Redevelopment Zone 1.  If there are additional monies, the Chamber and various other 
interested parties will be contacted to make up the difference thus, a public-private 
partnership.  The anticipated cost of the sign is approximately $75,000.  We have secured 
preliminary bids from three sign companies; however, the parks and recreation 
department will be charged with resending bids with the proper specifications and will 
oversee the project. 
 
It is way past time to bring the community center sign up to the current century.  The new 
signage will present a forward looking image of Carson City and will be a win-win for 
government, non-profits and businesses that will affect every corner of this city. 
 
 
Prepared by Ronni Hannaman 
Carson City Chamber of Commerce 
11/20/12 
 
 
Should there be a shortfall in the Redevelopment funds, we have secured the following 
partners: 
 
CVB   -$3,000 
Chamber -  $1,500 
Sheriff’s Office   $1,000 
Fire Chief   $1,000 
DBA  $2,000 
WNC  $2,000 
AT&T - $950. 
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



Attention:  Redevelopment Authority Citizens Committee

Re:  Suggested priority: Assist with infrastructure improvements
(It is one of Area #2ʼs major problems that inhibit economic growth.)

I have owned about 2 1/4 acres at 3201 South Carson St. for many years.  
Development concepts have been very difficult here as there is NO city water in the 
street for well over 600 feet -- an area of different ownerships both north and south of 
my land. Therefore, this entire area remains on wells and resistant to redevelopment ! 
Recently, Iʼve been working with both the Planning Division and the City Engineer and 
highlighting how the  lack of city water hampers any improvements to this large and 
highly visible section of Carson City. Hopefully, your committee will now recommend 
helping me to bring water to at least part of this unserved section of the City.

Thank you,
William D. Landry
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Dear Carson City Board of Supervisors

Re: December 6, 2012 Redevelopment Funds Decision

As most of you know, Iʼve made numerous presentations over the past many
months to city staff, to the Redevelopment Agency Citizens Committee (RACC) and to 
several Carson City officials -- to request government funding assistance for a South 
Carson Street Water Main Extension With New Fire Hydrant.  I fully understand that the 
ʻChamberʼs Sign Proposalʼ has “the inside track” for being granted 100% of the 
approximately $77,000 from the now available funds for redevelopment.  Nevertheless, I 
would appreciate that your Board might now reflect on the stalled S. Carson St. Water 
Project that would be a significant infrastructure upgrade for Carson City -- in an area 
seen by most everyone in Carson during the course of driving around town each week.  
Perhaps the current redevelopment money could support both proposals.  The Water 
Line/Fire Hydrant Proposal could be granted $33,000 and the Chamberʼs Sign Proposal 
could be granted the balance of $44,000 or so.  

Thank you for your consideration of redevelopment issues.

Sincerely,
 
William Landry
3201 South Carson Street Property Owner
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